
Minutes 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

Hampton Inn, Landfall Park 

Wilmington, North Carolina 

April 28, 2004 

 

 

Chairman Robert Stolz called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m.  He thanked all sponsors for the 

previous afternoon’s tour of the Wilmington Port and the reception and dinner aboard the Henrietta III.  He 

also thanked the State Ports and Ports Board for securing the meeting space at the Hampton Inn and for the bag 

lunch for Economic Development Board members and staff. 

 

Chairman Stolz called on Secretary Jim Fain and Don Hobart for an up-date of the recommendations 

for the General Assembly. 

 

Don Hobart reviewed the Board’s Legislative agenda for the upcoming General Assembly session 

beginning May 10.  He also provided the most recent recommendations of the Joint Select Committee on 

Growth and Economic Development and the Joint Select Committee on Small Business.  He said that 

Commerce is working on legislation right now in preparation for the Short Session including a bill that would 

provide emergency funding for the One North Carolina Fund, New and Expanded Industry Training and also 

the Job Development Investment Grant (JDIG) program.  In addition, he said that other legislation is also in 

the works such as sales tax exemption for large projects that would include the R&D tax credit, and a number 

of other items such as changes to the qualified business venture credit. 

 

Specific recommendations of the Economic Development Board are as follows: 

1)  Make North Carolina’s incentives more flexible, transparent and targeted. 

a) Provide $20 million in funding for the One North Carolina Fund. 

b) Develop a new research and development (R&D) tax credit. 

c) Expand and extend the Job Development Investment Grant (JDIG) Program. 

d) Eliminate or scale back the wage test under the WS Lee Program. 

e) Develop tourism and film incentives. 

2)  Advocate for full funding of the Community College System’s (CCS) training programs. 

a) Fund Focused Industrial Training (FIT) and New and Expanding Industry Training (NEIT) 

b) Support full funding for enrollment growth in UNC and CCS 

c) Support equity in funding for high-demand occupational extension courses in CCS 

3)  Find new sources of funding for marketing the entire state. 

4) Phase-in a reduction of the corporate income tax 

5) Revise state tax deferral programs to promote redevelopment of distressed properties to include 

      brownfields and brown buildings. 

 

 Secretary Fain commented on the expansion of the Job Development Investment Grant (JDIG) 

Program, which was a proposal recommended by the Board, supported by the Governor and approved in the 

2002 Session.  He said the program is working very well and at this time 12 grants have been awarded 

generating nearly 5,000 jobs with about a $600 million investment.  He said the JDIG Program has been a very 

successful program that works and we recommend that the General Assembly increase the cap and extend the 

Program. 

 

 Secretary of Revenue Norris Tolson commented as a member of the JDIG Committee that reviews and 

researches each applicant’s information thoroughly.  He said the five-member Committee and Commerce staff 

do a tremendous amount of work and research on each grant prior its award.  He said if the grants are 

challenged in the future, he would feel confident that proper documentation would be available to refute any 

objections to the decisions made. 

 



 Chris Beacham, Assistant Secretary for Policy, Research and Strategic Planning, discussed the 

Economic Development Information System (EDIS).  Mr. Beacham said that the new system would be a 

comprehensive tool that would be helpful to Commerce and North Carolina in thinking and acting strategically 

to further economic development goals.  He said the new system would also enable users within all North 

Carolina economic development organizations to strengthen economic intelligence capability, avoid 

duplication in data collection and maintenance and to monitor economic trends and target efforts to shape 

policy. 

 

 Next, Bob Seligson, Chairman of the North Carolina Film Council, and Frank Capra, Jr. with 

EUE/Screen Gems Studios made a presentation on the importance of the film industry to North Carolina.  Mr. 

Capra said that in film production, North Carolina ranks #3 behind California and New York, and because of 

the film production continuity in North Carolina, many people involved in the production of films have 

relocated to North Carolina from other areas of the country giving North Carolina a decided advantage.  He 

said that in recent years other countries have provided attractive incentives, which have been successful in 

luring films away from North Carolina.  He also stated that other states in the US are very competitive and are 

luring productions away from North Carolina as well.  Mr. Capra expressed concern that the film production 

workers will relocate to other states if North Carolina does not take immediate action to stop the flow of 

productions to other states and countries. He said that a workforce trained in film production gives North 

Carolina an advantage in the film industry. 

 

 Bob Seligson discussed the Film Industry and how productions have been migrating to other states and 

other countries because of incentives.  He, too, expressed concern that because of productions being shot in 

other locations, the job base that centers on the film industry has begun to erode.  He said it is imperative that 

incentives to bolster the film industry in North Carolina be considered before our ability to win over 

productions is gone.   He stated that North Carolina has many diverse areas that are rich in natural beauty not 

to mention the outstanding job base skilled in film production.  He further stated that with incentives to 

preserve the film industry in North Carolina, this industry could grow to be a major part of our state’s 

economy for years to come.  He outlined the Film Council’s proposal for incentives. 

 

There was discussion regarding the incentives and how they would be applied to film productions. 

 

 After a short break, Chairman Stolz mentioned that three new members were appointed to the Board 

replacing other members who had resigned: 

 Ruth Shaw, President, Duke Power Company 

 Senator Martin Nesbitt, North Carolina General Assembly 

 Dale Carroll, President & CEO, AdvantageWest Partnership 

 . 

 David King, Deputy Secretary, North Carolina Department of Transportation, introduced Alpesh 

Patel, Transportation Engineer with the North Carolina Department of Transportation who spoke on the 

Department’s statewide transportation plan and urban hubs. 

 

 Mr. Patel said that in the Department of Transportation’s meetings to discuss the Department’s long-

term statewide planning process, goals of the Economic Development Board’s Strategic Plan and the 

Department of Environment and Natural Resources plans are being considered.  He explained the process by 

which they began their planning strategy, and the categories that were considered, which were 

maintenance/preservation, modernization and expansion.  In addition, he said the Planning Committee would 

take into consideration changing trends in North Carolina’s diverse economy.  He said that the Committee has 

held public forums throughout the state, co-sponsored by Commerce and DENR, working collaboratively to 

formulate a plan that would be in the best interest of North Carolina and its citizens. 

 

 Chairman Stolz suggested that during the review of the Board’s Strategic Plan, staff should consider 

attending the Department of Transportation’s monthly planning meetings in an effort to take advantage of any 

opportunities to work collaboratively. 



 

 Secretary Jim Fain provided an update to the Board on a proposal to review the Strategic Plan.  He 

said that it is a statutory requirement that the Strategic Plan be refined and updated on a regular basis, and 

suggestions for this process are as follows: 

 Remove items that have already been accomplished 

 Bring together experts to do a gap analysis, examining issues not in the Plan that should be 

added 

 Update language in the Plan as necessary to reflect the Board’s vision 

 

In addition, he said that it is important to incorporate key initiatives from other Strategic Plans of 

affiliated entities.  He noted that the update would be led by staff with input from Board members.  He said 

that a group of experts would be asked to review the Plan to make sure there are no gaps and to provide input 

as necessary. 

 

 Stephanie McGarrah said that the update would include reviewing the existing goals and possibly 

identifying and/or building upon some of the concepts that could not be fully developed during the original 

process.  

 

 Secretary Fain said that the update would take place in the next few months and would be ready to 

discuss/review by the Board at its August meeting.  He said that it is important to identify issues as early as 

possible to enable the staff to have plenty of time to discuss recommendations with General Assembly 

members prior to Session in January. 

 

 Stephanie McGarrah reported on economic development delivery system expenditures.  She said she 

and other Policy, Research and Strategic Planning Division staff have developed a program by which to track 

economic development dollars and, as statutorily required, to review where money is spent in the state on all 

initiatives on economic development.  In addition, she said the program would be used to determine how 

money spent ties in with priorities established in the Board’s Strategic Plan. 

 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes of the February 25, 2004, meeting as 

presented.  The motion carried. 

 

Chairman Stolz reminded the members of the next meeting in the Durham/RTP area, August 10-11,  

2004. 

 

As there was no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 12:00 noon. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  


